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Located a short distance from downtown Toledo in one of
that city's older residential neighborhoods, the Edward D.
Libbey House has undergone little exterior alteration and looks
much as it did when he resided here from 1895 to 1925 while
revolutionizing the glass industry. The Shingle style house is
a 2 1/2-story edifice covered with yellow-painted shingles. It
sits on brick and stone foundations and features a partially
raised full basement. It 1is the only known extant structure
prominently associated with Libbey that has not been altered
beyond recognition.

Around 1894 Libbey commissioned David L. Stine, the architect
responsible for the Libbey factory at the 1893 Columbian Exposition
in Chicago, to design a suitable residence. Its completion in
1895 coincided with the rise of his Libbey Glass Company to
national prominence and the beginning of the most productive
phase of Libbey's career when he and Michael J. Owens revolutionized
the glass industry with a series of major technological improve-
ments. Libbey and Owens, who resided only a few blocks away,
probably discussed business in this house on numerous occasions.

In the years after their deaths, the most significant Owens
residences and all the important early factories assoclated with
Libbey Glass, Owens Bottle, and Libbey-Owens Sheet Glass were
either demolished or drastically altered.

The westward facing Libbey House 1s an irregularly-shaped
structure capped with a combination of multigabled and flat
roofs covered with asbestos shingles. Near the northwest and
southwest corners respectively, the roof slopes feature a single
gabled dormer. The roofline has an overhanging boxed wood
cornice with shingle-covered brackets and gables with projecting
verges. On 1ts south end the house features a two-story round
tower whose conical roof 1s plerced by a decorated and corbeled
inside end chimney. A much simpler inside end chimney is located
at the rear (east) facade of the house. The exterior walls are
covered with yellow painted wood shingles, with the exception
of the first story of the southwest corner which is faced with
uncoursed rubblestone. Although most windows are set in rect-
angular surrounds and are of the sash variety, thelr arrangement
varies widely. Multilight windows are used for the porch areas
on the front (west) facade and south end while one-over-one
sash type windows, grouped singly or in twos and threes and
som%;imes forming bays, are used elsewhere. The edifice features
two *lat-roofed porches with Greek Doric columns. One porch is
on the south end and is enclosed with leaded glass windows,
while the other wraps around the front (west) facade and a portion
of the north end and is open. It features carved wooden

balustrades. (continuedi'
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Between 1880 and 1925 no one exerted greater influence on
the development and direction of the American glass industry
than did Edward Drummond Libbey. According to historian Lura
Woodside Watkins, Libbey was "one of the most successful glass
manufacturers the country has ever known" and had "a profound
influence on glass-making the world over."l In 1888 he moved
the financially troubled New England Glass Company to Toledo,
Ohlo, rechristened it the Libbey Glass Company, and, "set many
unexcelled standards for the American glass industry," says
glass expert Otto Wittmann. "Indeed, Libbey glass, in both cut
and art glass, became the standard of the world for many years."

Refusing to rest on his laurels, in 1903 Libbey took the
lead in establishing the Owens Bottle Company, the forerunner of
Owens-Illinois, Inc. According to Warren C. Scoville, a leading
authority on the development of the American glass industry, by
1920 this company had become "the largest manufacturer of bottles
in the United States."> 1In 1916 Libbey provided the leadership
that led to the founding of the Libbey-Owens Sheet Glass Company,
the predecessor of Libbey-Owens-Ford, and one of the Nation's
leading manufacturers of window and plate glass.

During these same years, Libbey, working closely with
Michael J. Owens and others, was responsible for "technological
improvements of a truly revolutionary character," says Scoville,
which caused "handicraft processes which had been faithfully
followed for centuriﬁs" to be "either discarded or . . . adapted
to machine methods."

(continued)

lrura Woodside Watkins, Cambridge Glass 1818 to 1888: The
Story of the New England Glass Company (New York, 1930), 30.

2Cited in John W. Keefe, Libbey Glass: A Tradition of 150
Years, 1818-1968 (Toledo, 1968), 3.

3Warren C. Scoville, Revolution in Glassmaking: Entrepreneur-
ship and Technological Change in the American Industry, 1880-1920
(Cambridge, 1948), 109.
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Inside, the house exhibits many original features, including
solid brass door hardware, five fireplaces featuring elaborate
mantels, lighting fixtures, oak and walnut paneling, and Libbey's
wall safe which is hidden behind sliding oak wall panels.
Generally a somewhat modified central hall plan 1s followed with
three rooms on each side of a first-floor formal entry hall.

This area 1s dominated by an open two-flight grand stalrcase
flanked by Greek Doric columns and featuring a carved newel

post and balustrades and decorated with ornamental brackets. The
second floor features a centrally located open sitting room with
fireplace that 1s flanked on each side by two bedrooms. The
third level, which is reached by a rear stairway, consists of
seven rooms and served orignally as servants' quarters.

After Libbey died in 1925, his house continued to serve as
a private residence for many years. In 1965 it was purchased
by the Toledo Society for the Handicapped, and since that date
it has been used for educational and social service purposes.
The house has undergone very little interilor or exterior alteration
over the years. The only major exterior change occurred around
1965 when a covered wheelchair ramp was added to the rear (east)
facade. The house 1is still surrounded by its original black-
painted cast-iron fence and is beautifully landscaped. At
present the Toledo Society for the Handlcapped is planning to
construct a new facility, and there is a strong possibility they
will sell the Libbey House. The edifice 1s well-maintained
and situated in a neighborhood with a strong commitment to
historic preservation.

GPO 892 455
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Under Libbey's aegis, machines were developed to automatically
blow light bulbs, tumblers, lamp chimneys, bottles, glass tubilng,
and window glass. Not only did Libbey use thils equipment in his
own factories, but through a licensing arrangement, these
machines came into general use in glass plants throughout the
world. These machines were the most important development for
the glass industry, says distinguished historian Danilel J.
Boorstin, "since the anclent invention of the glass-blowing
iron." They not only transformed glass "from a luxury-treasure
into a democratic medium," but they brought the_United States
into the forefront as a glass-producing Nation.? Before 1880
the American glass industry, according to Scoville, "had lagged
definitely behind the European in matters of technology," but
"by 1920 it had forged to the front in respect to developing

and using efficient machines, %roducing on a large scale, and
lowering manufacturing costs."

Libbey resided in this westward facing, 2 1/2-story, Shingle
style house from 1895 until his death in 1925, the years during
which he played such a major role in revolutionizing the glass
industry. Designed by David L. Stine, architect of the Libbey
factory at the 1893 Columbian Exposition, it 1is little altered
and 1s the only known extant structure prominently assoclated
with Libbey or the early development of Libbey Glass, Owens
Bottle, and Libbey-Owens Sheet Glass that has not been altered
beyond recognition.

History

Edward Drummond Libbey was born April 17, 1854, in Chelsea,
Mass., to William L. and Julia M. Libbey. For several years
before his son's birth, the elder Libbey had been involved 1n
the glass industry in various capaclities, and during Edward's
childhood, William was agent and part owner of the Mt. Washington
Glass Company in New Bedford. Apparently Edward inherited his
father's enthusiasm for glass, because after finishing high school
in 1872 he announced that he would forego college for immedlate
entry into the glass business. At the time, Willliam Libbey was
argent for the New England Glass Company, one of the Nation's

5Danial J. Boorstin, The Americans: The Democratic Experience
(New York, 1973), 342, 340.

6Scoville, Revolution in Glassmaking, 197.
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leading manufacturers of fine glassware, and he helped Edward
obtain a position as chore boy at its Cambridge factory.

Young Libbey soon tired of this menial position, however,
and declided to resume his education. He entered Kent Hill
Academy in Maine with the intention of eventually becoming a
Methodlist minister. Around 1873 Libbey contracted a throat
infection which permanently impaired hils volce, and at the advice
of the school's rector, he withdrew from the academy because of
this disability. In 1874 he rejoined his father at the New
England Glass Company, this time in the position of clerk.

Desplite New England Glass Company's national reputation,
the firm encountered serious financial difficulties in the 1870's
because 1ts fine flint glass could not compete with the much
cheaper soda lime glass beilng produced elsewhere. 1In 1878
William Libbey purchased the factory, and 2 years later Edward
became his partner. After his father's death in 1883, Edward
became sole proprietor, and he soon set about to make the
company prosperous again. With the proceeds from his father's
insurance policies, he pald off the firm's debts and undertook
the production of Amberina, a type of flint glass which ranged
in color from light amber to deep red. "From the sale of this
patented product," says Scoville, "he reaped profits which lat;r
'served as the principal foundation of his successful career'"
During the next few years, Libbey introduced other patented
glassware, including Pomona, Peachblow, and Agata, with some
success. At the same time, however, he was troubled by his
constantly spiraling fuel costs which 1n some years devoured
his profits and by labor problems which on several occaslions
shut down his factory. When his labor force went out on strike
again in 1888, Libbey closed his Cambridge factory permanently
and went west to seek a new location.

After considering several locations in the natural gas
belt of the Midwest, Libbey chose Toledo because he was glven a
free plant site there. Hls decislion probably was influenced as
well by the fact that while visiting there he met and fell in love
with Forence Scott, whom he later married. By late summer the

(continued)

T1p14., 90.
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new factory on Ash Street, equipped largely with machinery
stripped from the Cambridge plant, was ready. On August 17,
1888, Libbey, accompanied by a number of his former executives
and 115 selected workers from the defunct New England Glass
Company, arrived in Toledo by traln and was accompanied to the
new plant by marching band. At first Libbey tried to retain

the company's historic name, calling it the W. L. Libbey and Son
New England Glassworks, but in 1892 he changed the name to Libbey
Glass Company.

Libbey's first 2 years in Toledo were anything but auspiclous
due to high employee turnover, an incompetent plant manager,
poorly constructed glass furnaces, and inferior quality glass.
Gradually, however, these problems were corrected, and by 1891
the company was on a firm financial footing, due in large part
to a lucrative contract with General Electric to manufacture
light bulbs. In 1893 the Libbey Glass Company achieved national
prominence because of an exhibition factory it operated at the
Columbian Exposition in Chicago. Nearly 2 million persons
toured this facllity, but even more importantly, according to
Scoville, "because of the favorable publicity received at the
fair, the Libbey trademark became known throughout the country
as a guarantee of excellence in glassmaking." As a result,
according to Wittmann, the company "set many unexcelled standards
for the American glass industry in the late years of the century.
Indeed, Libbey glass, in both cut and grt glass, became the
standard of the world for many years."

During the exposition, Michael J. Owens, the manager of
the Libbey exhibit, began to toy with the idea of developing
machinery that would blow glass automatically. At the urging
of Libbey, he put his ideas into practice, and in 1894 a semi-
automatic machine to blow light bulbs was put into operation 1in
the Libbey Glass Plant, the first in a series of what Scoville
calls "technological improvements of a truly revolutionary
character" which caused "handlicraft processes which had been
faithfully followed for centuries" to be "either discarded or . . .
adapted to machine methods."

(continued)

CIbid., 96. (3‘/3)
9cited in Keefe, Libbey Glass, 3. -

10Scoville, Revolution in Glassmaking, 149.
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In 1895 Libbey and Owens organized the Toledo Glass Company
whose primary purpose was not to manufacture glass but to improve
and license machinery developed by Owens. During the next
few years, the bulb machine was made fully automatic and adapted
so that it could be used to produce tumblers and lamp chimneys
as well, and the Owens machines came into general use in the
glass industry. By 1903 Owens had perfected his fully automatic
bottle blowing machine, which, according to Scoville, "constituted
by far the most important labor-saving technique 1ntroduc§d in
the bottle industry since the invention of the blowpipe." 1

To fully exploit this new machine, Libbey and Owens organized
the Owens Bottle Company in 1903. During the first 6 years of
its corporate existence, this firm made bottles only in ex-~
perimental batches as part of an ongolng effort to improve the
machine. The company's main business was licensing other bottle
and glass contailner manufacturers to use the machine, and within
a few years 1t was in general use throughout the industry. 1In
fact, Libbey and Owens granted so many exclusive licenses 1in
certaln lines of manufacture that when they decided to produce
bottles on a large scale in 1909 they had to obtain sublicenses
before they could use their own machines. After 1909 Libbey
and Owens rapidly expanded the Owens Bottle Company until by
1920 it was the Nation's largest bottle manufacturer with 18
factories in 6 States.

In the meantime Libbey and Owens became interested in a new
process for producing window or plate glass developed by Irving
W. Coélburn. For years glass of this type had been produced by
skilled workers who blew, slit, and flattened cylinders of glass,
but in 1906 Colburn patented a machine to make window glass in
sheet form. Colburn, however, lacked the financlal means to
make his machine a success, and in 1912 Libbey, acting on behalf
of the Toledo Glass Company, purchased hils patents at a sheriff's
sale for $15,000. For the next few years Colburn and Owens worked
on the machine until it was perfected. In 1916 Libbey and Owens
incorporated the Libbey-Owens Sheet Glass Company to not only
manufacture window glass but to license other firms to use the
Colburn process. The new firm quickly prospered and soon became
one of the Nation's leading manufacturers of sheet glass.

(continued)

1l1p14., 158.
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During his last years Llbbey remained active in the glass
industry despite the fact that he devoted a great deal of his
time to civic, philanthropic, and educational activities. 1In
1901 he founded the Toledo Museum of Art and over the years played
the major role in making it one of the Nation's leading art
museums. On November 13, 1925, Libbey died 1in Toledo at the age
of T71.

In the years after the deaths of Libbey and Owens (who
died in 1923), the firms they founded continued to prosper. In
1929 the Owens Bottle Company merged with the Illinois Glass
Company to create Owens-Illinols, now a leading manufacturer of
glass, plastic, paper, and glass ceramic products. Libbey Glass
operated for many years as a separate entlity, manufacturilng
light bulbs and cheap glassware as well as 1ts famous hand-
blown glassware. In 1935 1t was acquired by Owens-Illinois, and
during World War II, it ceased its flne glassware operation.
Presently it manufactures a wide variety of machine-made glass-
ware to suilt every taste and pocketbook. In 1930 the Libbey-
Owens Sheet Glass Company merged with the Edward Ford Plate
Glass Company, bringing Libbey-Owens-Ford into existence as well
as the famous L-O-F shield on plate and window glass.

D
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